
 

 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Safer & 
Stronger Communities 
 
Monday, 14 September 2009 at 12.30 pm or on the rising of 
the Safer & Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee if later 
 
County Hall, Oxford (Grand Jury Room) 
 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 
overleaf and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken will become effective at 
the end of the working day on 22 September 2009 unless called in by that date for review 
by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council*. 
 
*Separate provisions apply in relation to exempt information. 
 
These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
Note:  Date of next meeting: 26 October 2009 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

 
Tony Cloke  
Assistant Head of Legal & Democratic Services September 2009 
 
 
Contact Officer: 

 

Kath Coldwell Tel: (01865) 815902; E-Mail: 
kath.coldwell@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 
 

1. Petitions and Public Address  

2. Questions from County Councillors  
 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am on the 

working day before the meeting, ask any question on any matter in respect of the 
Cabinet’s delegated powers.   
 
This could include significant issues affecting the councillor’s division, which 
otherwise might be the subject of an address, petition or motion at council. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting 
is limited to two (or one question plus a supplementary) and the question time will 
be limited to 30 minutes in total.  As with questions at Council, any questions which 
remain unanswered within that timescale will receive a written response. 

 
Questions submitted after agenda despatch and by 9 am on the working day before 
the meeting will be placed on a schedule of Addenda and tabled at the meeting. 
  
 

3. Declarations of Interest  

4. FiReControl (Fire Service Regional Control Room Project) 
Business Case (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Forward Plan Ref: 2009/079 

Contact: Colin Thomas, Assistant Chief Fire Officer and Head of Service Support 
(01865 855206) 
 
Report by John Parry, Director for Community Safety & Shared Services and Chief 
Fire Officer. 
  
 

 
EXEMPT ITEM 
 
It is RECOMMENDED that the public be excluded for the duration of item 5E since 
it is likely that if they were present during that item there would be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) and specified below in relation to the item  
 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information) 
 
and since it is considered that, in all the circumstances of the case, the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information in that where information has been supplied in commercial 
confidence such disclosure would prejudice the commercial position of the parties 
involved and would prejudice the position of the authority's investments to the 



Page 3  
 

 

detriment of the Council’s ability properly to discharge its fiduciary and other 
duties as a public authority. 
 
THE REPORT RELATING TO THE EXEMPT ITEM HAS NOT BEEN MADE PUBLIC 
AND SHOULD BE REGARDED AS STRICTLY PRIVATE TO MEMBERS AND 
OFFICERS ENTITLED TO RECEIVE IT. 
 
 

5. The Provision of Gypsy & Traveller Services to Other Local 
Authorities and Public Bodies (Pages 5 - 10) 
 Forward Plan Ref: 2009/125 

Contact: Nigel Strick, Head of Community Safety (01865 815601) 
 
Report by Head of Community Safety. 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CMDSSCSEP1409R020.doc 

Division(s): N/A 
 

ITEM CMDSSC4 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFER & STRONGER COMMUNITIES 
14 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

FIRECONTROL (FIRE SERVICE REGIONAL CONTROL ROOM 
PROJECT) BUSINESS CASE VERSION 1.1 

 
Report by Director for Community Safety and Chief Fire Officer 

 
Introduction 

 
1. On 6 May 2009 the final Business Case was published by Communities & 

Local Government (CLG) with a written statement to the Cabinet Office.  This 
version includes both the regional and national cases for the project which 
had previously been separated.  CLG do not expect that it will be necessary to 
publish a further version of the Business Case. 

 
Issues Reviewed 

 
2. FiReControl payment: the 2008 Business Case included a ministerial 

commitment to ensure all regions break even.  This has been modified with 
payments being made at the individual Fire and Rescue Authority (FRA) level.  
Oxfordshire considers this welcome.  

 
3. Duration of FiReControl payment: This has been confirmed for three years 

and is then open to review.   Oxfordshire considers this a future financial risk. 
 
4. Critical National Infrastructure (CNI): concerns about the cost of 

accommodation and other features provided to meet project resilience 
objectives.  Oxfordshire notes the intentions of CLG to provide a cost effective 
solution which will not add a net new burden. 

 
5. Out of scope activities: there were concerns that the provision made in the 

Business Case for out of scope activities (existing Fire & Rescue Service 
(FRS) activities which will not transfer to the Regional Control Centre (RCC)) 
were understated. A review involving FRSs indicated that these were robust in 
a majority of cases. Oxfordshire notes this belief and will monitor the situation 
as further clarity becomes available. 

 
6. Data management: further analysis on the assumptions about the level of 

resources needed by FRSs and RCCs to manage data in steady state 
identified that there was a need for additional resources at FRS level. It also 
indicated that additional transitional funding should be provided to FRAs to 
improve the interface between RCC and FRS systems, as this would increase 
efficiency and reduce the requirement for manual data entry.  Oxfordshire 
welcomes these acknowledgements and notes the intention to pass an 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



CMDSSC4 - page 2 
 
 

CMDSSCSEP1409R020.doc 

additional £100k to each Fire Authority under New Burdens to fund interfacing 
arrangements. 

 
7. FRS cost baseline: assurance activities concerning the financial baseline 

used for assessing the costs of current FRS controls have been undertaken.  
Oxfordshire was visited as part of this process but remains disappointed that 
certain existing costs are included in the financial model. 

 
8. Pensions: this issue can not be fully resolved until staffing decisions have 

been made. Where sound evidence exists, the Business Case now includes 
pension costs. Where evidence is not yet available, the risk of additional costs 
has been identified and will be reflected in future funding arrangements.  
Oxfordshire welcomes this. 

 
9. Local Authority Control Centre (LACC) management cost: in response to 

consultation feedback estimated costs for LACC professional and 
administrative support services, such as payroll administration, are now 
included.  Oxfordshire welcomes this. 

 
10. Group Functions: this is connected to the current consultation on the 

potential use of Firebuy or an alternate Non Departmental Public Body to 
undertake in service contract management functions.  CLG considers that a 
comprehensive review of activities has confirmed that the cost assumptions 
for FiReControl are complete and prudent.  Oxfordshire notes the assurance. 

 
11. Utilities costs: based on current LACC running costs there were concerns 

that electricity costs were underestimated. In response to consultation 
feedback utilities cost estimates have been revised upwards and the situation 
will be kept under review. 

 
Other issues 
 

12. Total Project costs have stabilised at £420m (This was £380m but £40m has 
been added by the announced delay). 

 
13. The Economic Case states that it would cost approx £320m to cancel the 

project, which is not deemed to be value for money.  CLG also does not rule 
out the option of a tri-service control at some point in the future. 

 
14. The Financial Case states that the original national saving of 28% has been 

revised, initially to 11% and now to 9%.  It also mentions that it is for the 
FRAs, through Regional Management Boards (RMBs), to agree the 
mechanism for apportioning the cost of running the RCC in their region. 

 
Financial and Staff Implications 

 
15. In the previous iteration of the South East Annex the net revenue saving 

identified for Oxfordshire was £225k per annum.  Appendix Y of the Business 
Case now reveals that the anticipated saving has reduced to £182k.  This is 
due to a revision in the current estimated costs for the existing Control 

Page 2



CMDSSC4 - page 3 
 
 

CMDSSCSEP1409R020.doc 

function.  However it should be noted that at this time any apparent saving is 
only considered notional. 
 

16. The implications of this apparent reduction in net saving is constraint in the 
resources available to undertake in scope (undertaken in FRS) and out of 
scope activities. 

 
17. As yet there is insufficient sub regional breakdown of costs to investigate the 

apparent reduction in notional net saving.  This is being considered by the 
Regional Joint Project Board and the Fire Finance Network. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
18. The Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities is 

RECOMMENDED to: 
 

(a) note the publication of the Business Case Version 1.1; 
 
(b) note the intention to pursue further investigations regarding the 

sub regional breakdown of costs;  
 
(c) request the Director for Community Safety and Chief Fire Officer 

to report back when further investigations are concluded. 
 
 
 
JOHN PARRY 
Director for Community Safety and Chief Fire Officer 
 
Background papers:   Nil 
 
Contact Officer:  Colin Thomas, Senior User Firelink and FiReControl 

Tel: (01865) 855206 
 
September 2009 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

Page 5

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 FiReControl (Fire Service Regional Control Room Project) Business Case
	5 The Provision of Gypsy & Traveller Services to Other Local Authorities and Public Bodies
	CMDSSC_SEP1409RC3


